## **Public Minutes**



# FTSE EPRA Nareit European Regional Advisory Committee

Thursday 02 March 2023

#### **ATTENDEES**

Members: six (6); apologies: three (3)

EPRA: four (4) Nareit: three (3)

FTSE Russell: ten (10) including the Chairman and Committee Secretary

Attendees were reminded of their obligations in relation to confidentiality of information, conflicts of interest and competition law. There were no declarations.

## 1.0 Statutory Governance Matters and Committee Information

- 1.1 <u>Membership changes</u>
- 1.1.1 There were no membership changes.
- 1.2 Minutes
- 1.2.1 The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 01 December 2022 were approved as presented.
- 1.2.2 The public minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 01 December 2022 were approved as presented.
- 1.3 Governance
- 1.3.1 Annual review of ground rules for the FTSE EPRA Nareit Global Real Estate Index Series: the committee attested that the rules have been maintained and continue to meet the purpose for which they were designed.
- 1.3.2 The committee endorsed the latest version of the Terms of Reference.
- 1.4 Action Points and Matters Arising
- 1.4.1 The index partners to provide a marked-up version of the proposed updates to Appendix 7 of the FTSE EPRA Nareit Index Series ground rules for email-based feedback. FTSE Russell said as it did not receive comments on the updates to Appendix 7, which details the approach to the real estate EBITDA screen, it would publish the updated ground rules in the days following the

ftserussell.com An LSEG Business

- meeting. FTSE Russell also reminded the members that the changes did not constitute a methodology update but instead were intended to introduce greater transparency and clarity.
- 1.4.1.1 *Post-meeting note*: the announcement published on 27 April 2023 on the updated ground rules can be found here.
- 1.4.2 The index partners to revert on the approach to the custom detached houses segment. *The action was addressed under item 3.1.*
- 1.5 Key Notices and Updates
- 1.5.1 Methodology notices published since the last meeting were highlighted for the committee's benefit.

#### 2.0 Index Review

- 2.1 The <u>preliminary review announcement</u> for the Developed and the Emerging Indices was released on Wednesday 01 March 2023. The supporting company information sheets were circulated to the committee on the day of the meeting.
- 2.1.1 The review for March 2023 was summarised as follows:
  - Developed Europe: two (2) inclusion, one (1) exclusion, one (1) focus reclassification, and (1) REIT reclassification.
  - Emerging Europe: none.
- 2.1.1.1 Post-meeting note: there were no further changes made to the review announcement that was posted on the FTSE Russell website on 01 March 2023: FTSE EPRA Nareit Global Real Estate Index Series Quarterly Review.
- 3.0 Index Methodology and Policy
- 3.1 <u>Detached houses treatment in the FTSE EPRA Nareit Global Real Estate Index Series</u> (presented for support): FTSE Russell said that the topic of the treatment of detached houses arose following the addition of a company in the Asia region which operates different business lines, including real estate development, sales of detached houses, property management, and other real estate services, at the June 2023 review.
- 3.1.1 A representative from EPRA explained that the treatment of the segment and the related business lines are somewhat of a 'grey area' as homebuilding is eligible in the APAC region, but there is no specific reference to sale of detached houses. The traditional approach had been to consider companies which are akin to manufacturers of properties as non-eligible, i.e., those involved in the sale of pre-assembled houses. However, the detached housing activity of the company in question was described as a large scale urban development and so considered closer to residential development as a result.
- 3.1.2 The index partners sought the views of the committee members on a series of methodology/index treatment options in relation to i) land ownership, and ii) treatment of the Home Construction ICB code and differing regional treatments.
- 3.1.3 A discussion ensued and the committee members provided feedback.
- 3.1.4 Concluding the discussion, FTSE Russell explained that the index partners may introduce changes to the ground rules to reflect discussions regarding Home Construction and detached houses at the March 2023 advisory committee meetings. All changes and proposals were noted as subject to approval by the FTSE Russell Index Governance Board. FTSE Russell reserves the right to make changes to or revise any planned methodology updates and index treatments, as well as revert to the advisory committees with further questions.

- 3.1.5 *Post-meeting note*: the announcement published on 27 April 2023 on the updated ground rules can be found <u>here</u>.
- 4.0 AOB
- 4.1 There was no other business.
- 5.0 Actions
- 5.1 None.
- 6.0 Meeting Dates
- The meeting dates for 2023 were highlighted for the committee's benefit.
- 6.1.1 01 June / 07 September / 07 December

# For more information about our indices, please visit ftserussell.com.

© 2023 London Stock Exchange Group plc and its applicable group undertakings (the "LSE Group"). The LSE Group includes (1) FTSE International Limited ("FTSE"), (2) Frank Russell Company ("Russell"), (3) FTSE Global Debt Capital Markets Inc. and FTSE Global Debt Capital Markets Limited (together, "FTSE Canada"), (4) FTSE Fixed Income Europe Limited ("FTSE FI Europe"), (5) FTSE Fixed Income LLC ("FTSE FI"), (6) The Yield Book Inc ("YB") and (7) Beyond Ratings S.A.S. ("BR"). All rights reserved.

FTSE Russell® is a trading name of FTSE, Russell, FTSE Canada, FTSE FI, FTSE FI Europe, YB and BR. "FTSE®", "Russell®", "FTSE Russell®" "FTSE4Good®", "ICB®", "The Yield Book®" "Beyond Ratings®" and all other trademarks and service marks used herein (whether registered or unregistered) are trade marks and/or service marks owned or licensed by the applicable member of the LSE Group or their respective licensors and are owned, or used under licence, by FTSE, Russell, FTSE Canada, FTSE FI, FTSE FI Europe, YB or BR.

FTSE International Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority as a benchmark administrator.

All information is provided for information purposes only. Every effort is made to ensure that all information given in this publication is accurate, but no responsibility or liability can be accepted by any member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors for any errors or for any loss from use of this publication or any of the information or data contained herein.

No member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors make any claim, prediction, warranty or representation whatsoever, expressly or impliedly, either as to the results to be obtained from the use of FTSE Russell indices or the fitness or suitability of FTSE Russell indices for any particular purpose to which it might be put. Indices cannot be invested in directly. Inclusion of an asset in an index is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold that asset. The general information contained in this publication should not be acted upon without obtaining specific legal, tax, and investment advice from a licensed professional.

No member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors provide investment advice and nothing in this document should be taken as constituting financial or investment advice. No member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors make any representation regarding the advisability of investing in any asset or whether such investment creates any legal or compliance risks for the investor. A decision to invest in any such asset should not be made in reliance on any information herein. Indices cannot be invested in directly. Inclusion of an asset in an index is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold that asset nor confirmation that any particular investor may lawfully buy, sell or hold the asset or an index containing the asset. The general information contained in this publication should not be acted upon without obtaining specific legal, tax, and investment advice from a licensed professional.

No part of this information may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without prior written permission of the applicable member of the LSE Group. Use and distribution of the LSE Group index data and the use of their data to create financial products require a licence from FTSE, Russell, FTSE Canada, FTSE FI, FTSE FI Europe, YB, BR and/or their respective licensors.

### **About FTSE Russell**

FTSE Russell is a leading global index provider creating and managing a wide range of indices, data and analytic solutions to meet client needs across asset classes, style and strategies. Covering 98% of the investable market, FTSE Russell indices offer a true picture of global markets, combined with the specialist knowledge gained from developing local benchmarks around the world.

FTSE Russell index expertise and products are used extensively by institutional and retail investors globally. For over 30 years, leading asset owners, asset managers, ETF providers and investment banks have chosen FTSE Russell indices to benchmark their investment performance and create investment funds, ETFs, structured products and index-based derivatives. FTSE Russell indices also provide clients with tools for asset allocation, investment strategy analysis and risk management.

A core set of universal principles guides FTSE Russell index design and management: a transparent rules-based methodology is informed by independent committees of leading market participants. FTSE Russell is focused on index innovation and customer partnership applying the highest industry standards and embracing the IOSCO Principles. FTSE Russell is wholly owned by London Stock Exchange Group.

For more information, visit ftserussell.com.

To learn more, visit <a href="mailto:ftserussell.com">ftserussell.com</a>; or call your regional Client Service Team office:

**EMEA** 

North America

**Asia-Pacific** 

+44 (0) 20 7866 1810

+1 877 503 6437

Hong Kong +852 2164 3333 Tokyo +81 (3) 6441 1440 Sydney +61 (0) 2 8823 3521